
 

 

 

 

COUNCIL 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Date: Tuesday, 29th November, 2022 

 Time: 7.00 pm 

 Venue: 
 

The Guildhall, High Street, 
Worcester WR1 2EY 

 
 



2 

COUNCIL  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 

Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, 
access to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as 

you face the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated 
disabled parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the 
ground floor, which can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted 

mobility and you wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below 
in advance and we will make any necessary arrangements to assist your visit. 
 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies 
of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 
preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. 

Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is 
anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background 
papers are open to public inspection. 

 
Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to 
report on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording 

and providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on 
the proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 

attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing 
to attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or 
recorded and for any footage to be broadcast or published.   

 
Please note the Council records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are 
published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be 

posted in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City 
Council he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being 
published live to the Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate 

or suspend recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of 
the meeting or if they consider that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, 
or breach any statutory provision. 

 
At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is 
allowed for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter 

on the Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 12 noon on the last 
working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. 
 

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also 
available electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website 
Address: worcester.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries about this Agenda, require any details of background papers, or wish to 
discuss the arrangements for public participation please contact Claire Chaplin, Democratic and 

Civic Services Manager, Democratic Services, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 
01905 722005 (direct line); E-Mail Address: 
committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk  

 
This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 
minority languages. Please contact the above-named officer for further information. 
 

 



3 

Council 
Tuesday, 29 November 2022 

 

Members of the Council:- 

 

Chair:  The Mayor 
 

Councillor Patricia Agar (LCo) 
Councillor Basharat Ali (L) 

Councillor Mel Allcott (LD) 
Councillor Mohammad Altaf (C) 
Councillor Alan Amos (C) 

Councillor Jenny Barnes (LCo) 
Councillor Marc Bayliss (C) 

Councillor Marjory Bisset (G) 
Councillor Owen Cleary (C) 
Councillor Steve Cockeram (G) 

Councillor Zoe Cookson (L) 
Councillor Simon Cronin (L) 

Councillor Lynn Denham (L) 
Councillor Jill Desayrah (L) 
Councillor Allah Ditta (C) 

Councillor Shafaz Ditta (C) 
Councillor Simon Geraghty (C) 

Councillor Adrian Gregson (L) 
 

Councillor Nida Hassan (C) 
Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C) 

Councillor Stephen Hodgson (C) 
Councillor Matthew Lamb (L) 
Councillor Neil Laurenson (G) 

Councillor Karen Lawrance (LD) 
Councillor Karen Lewing (G) 

Councillor Steve Mackay (C) 
Councillor Chris Mitchell (C) 
Councillor Robyn Norfolk (L) 

Councillor Tom Piotrowski (G) 
Councillor Jabbar Riaz (L) 

Councillor Andrew Roberts (C) 
Councillor Andy Stafford (C) 
Councillor James Stanley (C) 

Councillor Louis Stephen (G) 
Councillor Richard Udall (L) 

 

 

  

C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  
LD = Liberal Democrat 

 

You are hereby summoned to attend the meeting of the Worcester City Council to be 
held at The Guildhall, High Street, Worcester WR1 2EY on Tuesday, 29th November, 

2022 at 7.00 pm at which meeting the following business is proposed to be transacted. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1 
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 

 

1. Apologies for Absence  

 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

3. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 18 

 Of the meeting held on 17th October 2022 to be approved and signed. 
 

 
 

 



4 

4. Mayor's Communications  

 To receive any communications the Mayor may wish to make. 

 

5. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 

question or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the 
Council in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10. 

 
Marilyn McCarthy, Chair, The Swan Food Project will ask: 
 

“We invite Councillors with interests in wildlife, environment, culture, history and 
tourism to join us to explore ways to give the swan sanctuary, established by the 

City Council and the Cathedral in the early eighties, a more formal and organised 
identity. We propose the creation of a 'Worcester Swan Sanctuary Trust' to 

enhance swan welfare, infrastructure, visitor experience and community 
engagement. Will the City Council agree to meeting with us?” 
 

6. Questions  

 The Joint Leader of the Council, or the Chair of any Committee or Sub-Committee, 
to take any questions that may be submitted in accordance with Council Procedure 

Rule 9. 
 

7. Notice of Motion  

 To consider any Notices of Motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rule 8. 

 
1. Proposed Amendment to Council’s Constitution 

     

The Council notes that:  
 

1. Public participation in Committee meetings should offer a meaningful 
opportunity for residents to engage with local democracy. Residents should be 
able not only to raise questions and share their views on matters discussed by 

the Committees of this Council; they should be also entitled to receive 
responses to their questions raised in the Committee meetings.  

 
2. The current Constitution does not guarantee that residents must receive 

answers to their questions and therefore it may create a serious doubt 

whether the Council listens to and seriously considers the views and 
suggestions raised by residents.      

 
3. In order to rectify this democratic deficiency and enhance the sense of 

accountability of Elected Members and Council Officers, this motion asks the 

full Council to amend our Constitution where it states that ‘Any question shall 
be directed at the Chair who may reply orally at the meeting, or in writing 

following the meeting or who may decline to reply; or who may ask an 
Officer so to reply on his or her behalf.’ (Part 5 Committee Procedure Rules, 
10.4.3).  

 
 

 



5 

4. The Council is therefore being asked to accept the material amendment 
resulting in the following wording: “The Council values opinions and 

welcomes questions of the public. Shall there be any questions directed at 
the Chair, the Chair shall be obliged to reply orally at the meeting, or in 

writing following the meeting; or shall ask an Officer so to reply on the 
Chair’s behalf.”   

 

5. Furthermore, one may be under the impression that the Council’s present 
Constitution does not give sufficient weight and acknowledgement to the 

importance of petitions put forward by members of public. 
 
6. The relevant section of our Council’s Constitution states that: ‘Any petition 

shall be received by the Chair without response’ (10.4.2).  
 

7. Whereas it is right and proper to allocate sufficient time for considering 
petitions of residents, acknowledging the receipt of a petition should be an 
important and clear sign that the views of residents matter. Thus is the nature 

of democracy. 
 

8. Therefore, the Council is happy to accept an amendment that would affect the 
wording regarding petitions from members of public by stating that: “Any 

petition shall be received by the Chair who will who be obliged to 
acknowledge its receipt and will endeavour to respond in writing to its 
content. The Chair may delegate the formal reply to the petition to an 

Officer.” 
 

Proposed by: Councillor Piotrowski 
 
2. Voter ID 

 
In April 2022 the Elections Act came into effect. This rules that all voters for 

English or UK-wide general election must show photographic identification. 
 
Voter ID is completely unnecessary and all the evidence indicates that it is likely 

to particularly suppress turnout amongst disadvantaged groups.   
Furthermore, there is specific concerns about its rollout for local election across 

England in May 2023.  
 
Election officials as quoted by The Guardian on 10th November 2022 have 

expressed concern that a short timetable for implementation and lack of clarity 
about the rules could cause thousands of people to be disfranchised. 

 
Council therefore resolves to mandate the Managing Director to write to H.M. 
Government calling for a delay to the introduction of compulsory voter ID pending 

a review of its likely impact. 
 

Proposed by: Councillor Lamb 
 
3. BBC Local Radio 

 
Council recognises and values the contribution to Worcestershire life and society 

made by BBC local radio stations, such as BBC Hereford and Worcester.   
 



6 

Council views with deep concern the possible impact of the government decision 
to freeze and then abolish the TV Licence Fee and the consequences it could have 

on future funding for local radio.  Use of BBC local radio is an important and vital 
part of the Council’s ability to communicate with local residents at times of 

emergency or natural disaster.   
  
Council therefore mandates the Managing Director to write to the Secretary of 

State calling on her to ensure and secure future funding for BBC local radio in 
Worcestershire. 

 
Proposed by: Councillor Allcott 

 

4. Additional Licensing for Houses in Multiple Occupation 
 

In May 2020, Worcester City Council adopted rules to require additional licensing 
for the creation of new HMOs in five wards of the city: St John, St Clement, 
Bedwardine, Cathedral and Arboretum. 

 
In the context of a recession and a cost of living crisis, where housing and living 

standards are likely to decline, these rules are a necessary protection against 
exploitation. 

 
All wards in the city would benefit from being covered by these rules. 
 

Therefore, Council resolves to revoke the exemptions currently in place, and 
instead require additional licensing for HMOs across the whole of the city, 

regardless of the ward they happen to be in. 
 
Proposed by: Councillor Riaz 

 
8. Matters Relating to the Leadership of the Council  

 To consider the election of the Joint Leader(s) of the Council. 

 

9. Council Response to the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England: Draft Recommendations for New Electoral Arrangements for 

Worcester City Council  
Page(s): 19 - 32 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Sian Stroud, Corporate Director, Planning and Governance 
Tel: 01905 722017 

 Council agrees the Response set out in Appendix 1 as its collective response to the 
draft recommendations published by the Local Government Boundary Commission 

for England and authorises the Corporate Director - Planning and Governance to 
submit this document to the Commission, on behalf of the Council. 
 

10. Report from the Relevant Committee on Matters which are Referred to 
Council for Decision  

 To receive reports on matters which by law or in accordance with the Constitution 
are referred to Council for decision. 
 

 



7 

11. Report from the Joint Leader of the Council on Any Matters Which he is of 
the Opinion Require Urgent Consideration by the Council  

 To receive a report, if necessary. 
 

12. Items Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information  

 The Council is invited to pass the following resolution:- 
 

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 

information as defined in Schedule 12A of the said Act. 
 

PART II 

(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PRIVATE) 
 

13. Any Exempt Issues  

 To consider any exempt matters which might arise. 
 

David Blake  
Managing Director  
Guildhall  

Worcester WR1 2EY  
Date: 21st November 2022



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL 

 
17th October 2022 

 
Present:  
 

The Mayor, Councillor Adrian Gregson, in 
the Chair 

 
 Councillors Agar, Ali, Allcott, Amos, Barnes, 

Bayliss, Bisset, Cleary, Cockeram, Cookson, 
Cronin, Denham, Desayrah, A. Ditta, 
S. Ditta, Geraghty, Gregson, Hassan, 

Mrs L. Hodgson, S. Hodgson, Lamb, 
Laurenson, Lawrance, Lewing, Mackay, 

Mitchell, Norfolk, Piotrowski, Riaz, Roberts, 
Stafford, Stephen and Udall 

 

Apologies:  
 

Councillors Altaf and Stanley 

The Mayor gave apologies on behalf  of his Orator, Ian Craigan, who was unable 
to attend the meeting. The Mayor read an address to the Council on his behalf 

before commencement of the formal business of the Council 

 
41 Apologies for Absence  

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Altaf and Stanley. 
 

42 Declarations of Interest  
 

The following declarations of interest were made: 
 
Councillor Bayliss – Minute 49 (Notice of Motion – Investment Zones) - As 

Worcestershire County Council Cabinet Member for Cabinet Member with 
Responsibility for Economy Infrastructure and Skills 

 
Councillor Geraghty - Minute 49 (Notice of Motion – Investment Zones) - As 
Leader of Worcestershire County Council 

 
Councillor Lawrance – Minute 46 (South Worcestershire Development Plan 

Review: Publication Consultation (Regulation 19) and 24 – Employer is a tenant 
at Throckmorton Airfield. Councillor Lawrance left the meeting for consideration 

of this item 
 
Councillors Gregson, Mrs L Hodgson, S Hodgson and Udall - Minute 49 (Notice of 

Motion – Worcester Warriors Rugby Club) - As season ticket holders at Worcester 
Warriors Rugby Club 

 
Councillor Mitchell - Minute 49 (Notice of Motion – Worcester Warriors Rugby 
Club) - Has a hospitality box at Worcester Warriors Rugby Club. 

 
43 Minutes  

 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meetings held on 5th July and 11th 
September 2022 be approved as a correct record and signed by the 

Mayor. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 17th October 2022 2 

 
 

44 Mayor's Communications  

 
Ukrainian Welcome Event  

Nearly 100 Ukrainian guests and their host families were welcomed to the 
Guildhall on 6th August 2022.  Those that attended gave thanks to the City 
Council for the support that is being provided. 

 
Worcester City Run 

The Mayor had taken part in the Worcester City Run on 4th September, and his 
team, which included Councillors Laurenson and Lewing, had raised £1,500 for 
his charities. 

 
Death of HRH Queen Elizabeth II 

Following the death of HRH Queen Elizabeth II, both County and City 
Proclamations were held at the Guildhall, followed by a Memorial Service.  Over 
4,000 messages had been recorded in the Books of Condolence which were 

available at the Guildhall, and these have been placed in the County Council 
Archives. A letter of thanks has been received from the Royal Archives on behalf 

of King Charles III. The Mayor thanked all who had helped to organise these 
events in such a short amount of time.   
 

Inaugural Banquet 
The Mayor thanked everyone who attended the Inaugural Banquet on 23rd 

September 2022, all seemed to have a good time. 
 

Forthcoming Lectures 
The Mayor informed the Council that the Annual Civic Society Lecture will be 
taking place on Wednesday, 19th October at 7.30pm at the Guildhall.  Marcus 

Binney, Executive President of SAVE Britain’s Heritage will be delivering the 
lecture, which is free. The Worcestershire Archaeological Society Lecture will be 

taking place on Tuesday, 25th October at 7.30pm at the Guildhall.  The topic will 
be The Building of the Guildhall. 
 

Annual Poppy Appeal Launch and Remembrance Sunday 
The Mayor announced that the Annual Poppy Launch is to take place at the 

Guildhall on Saturday, 29th  October. Invitations for the Remembrance Sunday 
Service and Parade scheduled for 13th November 2022 have been distributed.  
The Parade to be bigger this year as a large number of veterans and serving 

officers will be attending from The Queen’s Royal Hussars. 
 

Refreshments 
The Mayor invited everyone to join him for refreshments in the Assembly Room 
once the meeting has finished.  

 
45 Public Participation  

 
None. 
 

46 South Worcestershire Development Plan Review: Publication 
Consultation (Regulation 19)  

 
The Council considered a report on proposals for the South Worcestershire 
Development Plan (SWDP) Review Publication (Regulation 19) consultation. 

Page 2



 17th October 2022 3 

 
 

Councillor Mrs Lucy Hodgson, Chair of Place and Economic Development 

Committee, presented the report and explained that this is the next stage in the 
SWDP Review process. The Appendices to the report included the draft Plan 

which is proposed for consultation; a link to the SWDP website which displays in 
draft the substantial number of evidence studies, policies and technical 
assessments which support the Plan as well as an interactive map; and an easy-

read summary leaflet in draft to help navigate readers through the Plan 
consultation stage. 

 
The draft Plan had been considered by the Place and Economic Development 
Committee at its meeting on 3 October 2022 and the Committee had 

unanimously approved the recommendations to Council. 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Mrs Lucy Hodgson and seconded by Councillor 
Norfolk and on being put to the vote it was agreed and 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council: 
 

1. approves the South Worcestershire Development Plan Review 
(SWDPR) Publication consultation (Regulation 19) set out in the 
Appendices, for consultation from 01 November 2022 for six weeks; 

 
2. authorises the Corporate Director – Planning and Governance in 

consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Place and Economic 
Development Committee to make minor amendments to the SWDP 

Publication Consultation (Regulation 19) material prior to 
publication; 

 

3. subject to the outcome of the Regulation 19 Publication consultation 
raising no material issues of concern on the soundness of the Plan, 

authorises the Corporate Director - Planning and Governance in 
consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Place and Economic 
Development Committee to make minor modifications and submit the 

SWDP Review for Examination, in accordance with Section 20 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and Regulation 22(3) of 

the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012, to the Secretary of State for the Department of 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities; and 

 
4. as part of the Examination process, authorises the Corporate Director 

– Planning and Governance in consultation with the Chair and Vice 
Chair of the Place and Economic Development Committee to formally 
request that the appointed Inspector make recommendations to the 

Council for any main modifications to the SWDP Review that are 
considered necessary to make the Plan sound as per Regulation 20 

(7C) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

47 South Worcestershire Traveller and Travelling Showpeople Policy and 

Site Allocations Development Plan Document (TTS DPD) Publication: 
Regulation 19  

 
 

Page 3



 17th October 2022 4 

 
 

The Council considered a report on the South Worcestershire Traveller and 

Travelling Showpeople Policy and Site Allocations Development Plan Document 
(DPD) Publication: Regulation 19. Councillor Mrs Lucy Hodgson, Chair of Place 

and Economic Development Committee, presented the report and explained that, 
whilst the SWDPR contains a policy for Travellers, it is the intention for this 
Travellers DPD to act as the primary policy function for new Traveller 

development. The DPD contains three policies, although no sites had been 
allocated in Worcester City. 

 
This matter had been considered by the Place and Economic Development 
Committee at its meeting on 3 October 2022 and the Committee had 

unanimously approved the recommendations to Council. 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Mrs Lucy Hodgson and seconded by Councillor 
Norfolk and on being put to the vote it was agreed and 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council: 
 

1. approves the South Worcestershire Traveller and Travelling 
Showpeople Policy and Site Allocations Development Plan Document 
(“DPD”) Publication: Regulation 19 set out at Appendix 1 for 

consultation from 01 November 2022 for six weeks; 
 

2. authorises the Corporate Director – Planning and Governance in 
consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Place and Economic 

Development Committee to make minor amendments to the South 
Worcestershire Traveller and Travelling Showpeople Policy and Site 
Allocations Development Plan Document Publication: Regulation 19 

material prior to publication; 
 

3. subject to the outcome of the Regulation 19 Publication consultation 
raising no material issues of concern on the soundness of the DPD, 
authorises the Corporate Director - Planning and Governance in 

consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Place and Economic 
Development Committee to make minor modifications and submit the 

DPD for examination, in accordance with Section 20 of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and Regulation 22(3) of the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 

2012, to the Secretary of State for the Department of Levelling Up, 
Housing and Communities; and 

 
4. as part of the Examination process, authorises the Corporate Director 

– Planning and Governance in consultation with the Chair and Vice 

Chair of the Place and Economic Development Committee to formally 
request that the appointed Inspector make recommendations to the 

Council for any main modifications to the DPD that are considered 
necessary to make the DPD sound as per Regulation 20 (7C) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
48 Questions  

 

Question No. 1 

Question Councillor Alan Amos 

Page 4



 17th October 2022 5 

 
 

From: 

Question To: Councillor Marc Bayliss, Joint Leader of the Council 

Question: In view of the Council’s repeated commitment to openness 
and transparency, on what basis did an officer of the Council 

decide not to inform 28 Members that the Fownes Hotel was 
to be filled with 124 alleged asylum seekers; how much extra 
time and effort would have been expended had he e-mailed all 

35 Councillors at the same time instead of just 7; how much 
extra time and effort would have been expended had the 

notice about it been displayed in the Members’ Bulletin before 
it had happened rather than afterwards; and does he agree 

with me that all Members - being accountable to the people of 
Worcester and responsible for the running of the Council - 
should, at all times, be informed of any significant and/or 

highly charged event or development in their City? 
 

Answer: The gardener’s shed on Fort Royal was vandalised recently. 
The pump on the Splashpad broke in August. The Revenues 

and Benefits portal went down for a day recently, and the 
Tree Team unfortunately smashed into a wall at St. George’s 
Primary.  

 
I tell you this because it exemplifies that all Members are not, 

as a matter of course, informed at the same time, of exactly 
every event in the city. Decisions are made on a day-to-day 
basis as to whether matters should be brought to the 

attention of the Leader, the Group Leaders, the Chair and 
Vice-Chairs of committees, and of course Ward Members. In 

fact, the City’s Constitution makes reference to the “need to 
know” principle and officers apply that principle on a daily 
basis in determining what information is reasonably necessary 

to enable each Member to perform their duties. It was on that 
basis that it was decided not to inform all Members of the plan 

by the Home Office to place asylum seekers in the Fownes 
before the plan was implemented.   
 

All Members were informed that asylum seekers had been 
placed in the hotel once it had been confirmed that this would 

take place. This is a perfectly acceptable approach in my view 
to keeping Members informed of events in the city. 
 

Supplementary 
Question: 

I thank Councillor Bayliss for his answer, but isn’t the truth 
that there appear to be those who think the people, and the 

people of Worcester, and most of their elected 
representatives, cannot be trusted to know what is going on in 

their city?  
 
Therefore, can Councillor Bayliss – and I’m sure he can - give 

me two assurances? Firstly, that there aren’t, and will not be, 
two classes of councillor, those who are allowed to know what 

is going on in their city, and those who may not? And 
secondly, that the people of Worcester should at all times be 
informed of major developments - those which are highly 

Page 5



 17th October 2022 6 

 
 

charged, I’m not talking about routine matters – in their city, 
are informed either directly or through their elected 
representatives, whether it’s about asylum seekers, or indeed 

anything else?   

Answer: I certainly don’t believe that there should be two classes of 
councillor, although certain roles do come with additional 

responsibilities and that is why people get additional 
responsibility allowances, and it’s a long-established system. 

In your role as a County Council Cabinet Member, you will 
have been aware of matters that other Members of the County 
Council wouldn’t have known.  

 
We all have roles and responsibilities, sometimes you get 

privy to additional information in those roles that you have to 
keep private for a period of time. My general belief is though 

that Members should be told as much as is possible and that 
we have a general duty to share information. 
 

On this specific one, I think the right decision was made, to be 
perfectly honest. We were not a decision maker here, we were 

simply informed of a proposal at that time, which the 
Government, and the Home Office, implemented, and as soon 
as it became de facto that they were going to do that, 

Members were told. I don’t think anybody was sought to be 
kept in the dark, and I believe that Officers acted in a 

responsible way on this occasion. I would say, however, that 
my general view is that we should tell people as quickly and 
as openly as possible when information is available to the 

Council. 
 

 

Question No. 2 

Question 

From: 

Councillor Laurenson  

Question To: Councillor Marc Bayliss, Joint Leader of the Council 

Question: The government has announced plans to lift the ban on 

fracking and to ban solar projects on farms. Last week, the 
climate minister claimed that fracking and oil drilling are good 
for the environment. Having given a well-received welcome 

speech at the City Council’s inaugural Sustainability Summit 
on 30th September, what are your views on the government’s 

recent statements about the environment?  
 

Answer: You’re inviting my own personal view on these matters. I 
think the government had it right previously in terms of 
fracking. Personally, I think the policy of the previous 

administration was the correct one.  
 

As for solar projects on farms, I think there are competing 
objectives here. I mean, we certainly do not support ourselves 
in food, we’re not sustainable and self-reliant in food 

production, so agricultural land on farms I'd want to be used 

Page 6



 17th October 2022 7 

 
 

for food production primarily, but certainly supporting solar 
projects as an initiative is something that I wholeheartedly 
agree with, and I'd like us to go even faster.  

 
I mean in terms of wind, you asked me about the 

government’s statements about the environment. I think I'm 
right in saying that we have something like between 60 and 
70% of the entire offshore energy from wind production in the 

European Union and I think that that is something we should 
be proud of, and we should continue absolutely to find the 

most renewable sources of electricity and their generation. So, 
I hope that gives him some sense of my perspective on those 
matters. 

Supplementary 
Question: 

The Green Party Member of the House of Lords, Jenny Jones, 
recently asked Lord Callanan whether the Government would 

accept that fracking would not happen in areas where local 
people and councillors object. In response, Lord Callanan 

merely said that local support for fracking would be taken into 
account. If fracking is ever proposed to take place in or near 
Worcester, what level of local consultation do you think would 

be acceptable, and would you object to the proposal? 
 

Answer: I think I can provide him with absolute reassurance on this. I 
understand that, geologically, there’s absolutely no chance of 

fracking in Worcestershire, so I think it highly, highly unlikely 
that that question would ever arise, just given our geological 
base. It’s not my area of specialism, but certainly I believe 

communities should always be supported and engaged, and 
consulted on any major planning changes, and that would be 

a very major one. But I think I can reassure him that there’s 
no realistic danger of that in Worcester or Worcestershire.  
 

 

Question No. 3 

Question 
From: 

Councillor Barnes  

Question To: Councillor Andy Stafford, Chair of Environment 
Committee 

Question: In November last year my motion asked about hosting Car 
Club spaces in our car parks. The motion as passed asked 

that: 
 

 Car Club be considered by the Environment Committee; 

and  
 that the Environmental Sustainability Action Plan be 

updated to include an action with the objective to 
encourage and support the introduction of car clubs in 
Worcester. 

 
Could you confirm either of these things have happened? 

 

Page 7



 17th October 2022 8 

 
 

Answer: Our Environmental Sustainability officers have been working 

in partnership with Enterprise Cars, with the first car club 
vehicle now set up in the Arboretum, and Enterprise Cars 

have also made it clear that they are keen to expand the 
scheme.  A detailed press release was issued just a few days 
ago and I’m happy to send you a copy if you haven’t seen it. 

 
In terms of your second point, an action with the objective to 

encourage and support the introduction of car clubs in 
Worcester has been included in the Sustainability Action Plan 
for 2023/24, and this is on the agenda for the next 

Environment Committee. 
 

Supplementary 
Question: 

So, at the moment there’s just a paper going to the next 
meeting about our car parks being used – is that correct?  

Answer: It’s an update to the Sustainability Action Plan, which happens 
every year, so the intentions of the motion that was agreed 

last year is going to be included within the Plan in its entirety, 
as well as the ongoing works that the officers have already 
undertaken with Enterprise Cars. 

 

Question No. 4 

Question 

From: 

Councillor Piotrowski  

Question To: Councillor Marc Bayliss, Joint Leader of the Council 
 

Question: Could the Joint Leader seek urgent clarification from West 
Mercia Police and Crime Commissioner who recently stated on 
BBC Hereford and Worcester Radio that low numbers of police 

officers, i.e. understaffing is irrelevant to solving crime and 
putting victims of crime first? 

Answer: I don’t know why he might be asking me this question, but 
just by chance I happen to have found out the information for 
him. I don't believe the Commissioner was, I think he was 

disputing the premise of the question that there was a low 
number of police officers. I’m delighted to report that the total 

number of police officers in West Mercia is 2,456, which is 524 
up on when the Commissioner took office in 2016. It is also 
approximately 100 more than when Labour was last in charge 

in 2010, when the number was 2,364. So, I think he was 
disputing the premise of the question that there was a low 

number of police officers in West Mercia. 
 

Supplementary 
Question: 

I think people who come along to the PACT meetings, 
residents in Battenhall, who suffered this series of burglaries, 
would be appreciative of understanding why the police 

numbers on the beat are irrelevant to solving crime? I think 
they deserve this explanation. 

Page 8



 17th October 2022 9 

 
 

Answer: I don't think they are irrelevant. I don't think the 

Commissioner was saying that either. It’s just the numbers 
have risen. There has been a significant - one of the 2019 

manifesto commitments was an additional 20,000 additional 
police officers - there has been a massive uplift in officers 
across the country and as I said we are now at 2,456 officers, 

which is 524 more than when the Commissioner took office, 
and is as I said greater than at any level in the period up to 

2010. So, this is very good news and hopefully will reassure 
the people of Worcester, Worcestershire and West Mercia that 
there are significant numbers of police officers available to 

support the policing initiatives in those areas. 
 

 

Question No. 5 

Question 

From: 

Councillor Lawrance  

Question To: Councillor Chris Mitchell, Chair of Planning 

 

Question: The City recently hosted a Sustainability Summit, I attended a 
Workshop with a panel of local people including the RSPB, 
WWT and the Environment Agency.  At the workshop the 

Environment Agency said that the laws had changed to 
support increasing wildlife numbers by 10%.  Further I 

received assurance that the City was in the process of 
reviewing its local planning regulations in support of this 
endeavour. In light of the recent change of PM will the City be 

continuing with its pledged commitment to increasing wildlife 
numbers and protect habitat within our beautiful City? 

 

Answer: The City Council will stand by its commitment that has been 

given to increasing wildlife numbers and protect habitat within 
our beautiful City.  
 

As many of you will already be aware, Biodiversity Net Gain is 
an approach to development and land management that aims 

to leave the natural environment in a measurably better way 
than it was beforehand. Under the Environment Act 2021, all 
planning permissions granted in England, with a few 

exemptions, will have to deliver at least 10% biodiversity net 
gain, but as yet a date has not been confirmed for 

implementation of the requirement. It is expected to be 
November 2023.  
 

Biodiversity Net Gain is about more than just planning, it will 
impact a range of Council services and it is important that we 

approach its introduction in a joined-up way. Biodiversity Net 
Gain links a range of agendas including: 

 
• addressing the climate emergency 
• place-making 

• green infrastructure 
• access to greenspace and nature 

Page 9



 17th October 2022 10 

 
 

• mental and physical health and wellbeing 
• flood resilience; and 
• improving air quality 

 
It is likely that Local Nature Recovery Strategies will be 

produced at county level and there will be other opportunities 
to achieve Biodiversity Net Gain by working with neighbouring 
authorities, local communities, landowners and farmers. 

 
Defra and Natural England are developing policy and 

secondary legislation on BNG and we shouldn’t be surprised to 
see BNG given even greater emphasis in the next iteration of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
I’m pleased to note that the review of the SWDP includes a 

revised policy SWDPR27 on Biodiversity and Geodiversity – 
this includes specific reference to BNG.  
 

Although currently SWDPR27 doesn’t specify a 10% 
requirement, a percentage may be added to the policy once 

secondary legislation has been passed, this could be a 
proposed modification when the draft plan is submitted to the 
Inspectorate for examination, or an amendment 

recommended by the Inspector during the examination itself. 
It is all matter of timing that we will need to see what 

secondary legislation is passed and what the next version of 
the NPPF says about the implementation of BNG. 
 

I do apologise for the all the abbreviations, but I did read 
them out first. 

Supplementary 
Question: 

None. 

 
49 Notice of Motion  

 
The Council considered the following Notices of Motion, which had been 

submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 8: 
 
1. Bulky Waste Collection 

 
Council is concerned about the cost-of-living crisis having a new impact on fly 

tipping, with the cost of bulky waste collection becoming a disincentive for many 
residents.  Council calls upon the Managing Director to bring reports to the 
relevant Council Committees, to consider the costs, consequences and benefits of 

a universal, pre-booked, free household bulky waste collection service for 
Worcester residents, which will enable elected councillors to consider options and 

determine what action, if any, to take. 
 
The proposer, Councillor Udall and the seconder, Councillor Desayrah, both spoke 

in support of the Motion. Other Members spoke in on the Motion, where a range 
of views were expressed across the Chamber, following which the Motion was put 

to the vote. The Motion was agreed and it was 

Page 10



 17th October 2022 11 

 
 

 

RESOLVED: That the Council agrees to instruct the Managing Director to 
bring reports to the relevant Council Committees, to consider the costs, 

consequences and benefits of a universal, pre-booked, free household 
bulky waste collection service for Worcester residents. 
 

2. Bus Services Within the City Boundaries 
 

Council calls upon the Managing Director to bring reports to relevant Council 
Committees to enable City Councillors to consider costs and options for either 
free or reduced price bus services within the city boundaries during December, 

including weekends and evenings, which would help promote bus use and 
support key workers, local retailers and their employees, and businesses. 

 
The proposer, Councillor Norfolk and the seconder, Councillor Barnes, both spoke 
in support of the Motion, following which the Motion was put to the vote. The 

Motion was agreed and it was 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council agrees to instruct the Managing Director to 
bring reports to relevant Council Committees to enable City Councillors 
to consider costs and options for either free or reduced price bus 

services within the city boundaries during December, including 
weekends and evenings. 

 
3. Proportional Representation for General Elections 

 
First Past the Post (FPTP) originated when land-owning aristocrats dominated 
parliament and voting was restricted to property-owning men. 

In Europe, only the UK and authoritarian Belarus still use archaic single-round 
FPTP for general elections. Meanwhile, internationally, Proportional 

Representation (PR) is used to elect parliaments in more than 80 countries. 
Those countries tend to be more equal, freer and greener. 
 

PR ensures all votes count, have equal value, and those seats won match votes 
cast. Under PR, MPs and Parliaments better reflect the age, gender and protected 

characteristics of local communities and the nation. 
 
MPs better reflecting their communities leads to improved decision-making, wider 

participation and increased levels of ownership of decisions taken. 
 

PR would also end minority rule. In 2019, 43.6% of the vote produced a 
government with 56.2% of the seats and 100% of the power. PR also prevents 
‘wrong winner’ elections such as occurred in 1951 and February 1974. 

 
PR is already used to elect the parliaments and assemblies of Scotland, Wales 

and Northern Ireland. So why not Westminster? 
 
Council therefore resolves to mandate the Managing Director to write to H.M. 

Government calling for a change in our outdated electoral laws to enable 
Proportional Representation to be used for general elections. 

 
The proposer, Councillor Allcott and the seconder, Councillor Lamb, both spoke in 
support of the Motion.  

Page 11



 17th October 2022 12 

 
 

 

The following amendment was proposed by Councillor Bisset and seconded by 
Councillor Stephen: 

 
Add the following paragraph before the final paragraph: “PR is also sorely needed 
at local elections.” 

 
Add the following words at the end of the final paragraph: “...to be used for 

general and local elections.” 
 
A vote on this amendment was carried. Members then entered into a debate, 

where a range of views were expressed across the Chamber. On being put to the 
vote the Motion, as amended, was agreed and it was 

 
RESOLVED: That the Council agrees to instruct the Managing Director to 
write to H.M. Government calling for a change in our outdated electoral 

laws to enable Proportional Representation to be used for Parliamentary 
General and Local Elections. 

 
4. Worcester Warriors Rugby Club 
 

This Council notes with dismay the financial mismanagement of the Worcester 
Warriors Rugby Club that has come to light in recent months and has led to the 

ownership of the club being taken away and transferred to the Joint 
Administrators of Julie Palmer, Julian Pitts and Andrew Hook all of Begbies 

Traynor (Central) LLP. 
 
Since the WRFC Trading Limited entered administration on 27th September horror 

stories have emerged of a complicated series of financial dealings that have 
transferred the property assets of WRFC Trading into the hands of a tangled web 

of Third Parties including Militibus Quanco (subsequently renamed Worcester 
Sport in August 2020), MQ Properties, and Link Corporate Trustees. It has also 
emerged that the players and staff are employed by yet another company WRFC 

Players Limited, that was wound up by the High Court on 5th October leaving the 
playing staff unemployed. 

 
In a rapidly developing situation welcome news was received on 6th October that 
the Joint administrators have confirmed they have seized Sixways land from 

club's co-owners and would be included as part the future sale of the Worcester 
Warriors Rugby Club. On the same day Premiership Rugby has confirmed that 

the club are suspended for remainder of the 2022/23 season and will be 
relegated to the Championship for the 2023/24 season. 
 

Therefore, the Council agrees to: 
1. Request the Managing Director to write to Julie Palmer and her fellow 

Administrators at Begbies Traynor (Central) LLP to thank them for their work 

in the handling the administration process. 

2. Request the Managing Director to write to Simon Massie-Taylor, the Chief 

Executive of Premiership Rugby to reconsider the decision to demote 

Worcester Warriors to the Championship for the 2023/24 season, and to 

allow the option of any future owners to field a team in the current playing 

season. 

Page 12



 17th October 2022 13 

 
 

3. Provide encouragement in supporting any potential investors to find a 

positive outcome for the future of Worcester Warriors. 

4. Request the Managing Director to write to Robin Walker MP to ask the DCMS 

to extend the scope of the proposed independent football regulator, to cover 

other professional spectator team sports including Rugby Union. 

5. Request the Managing Director to write to Steve Diamond, the Director of 

Rugby at the Worcester Warriors, to thank him for his efforts in helping the 

playing staff in these difficult times. 

6. That Worcester City Council will engage in some commercial activity to 

financially assist the club that is appropriate; this could include hiring club 

owned facilities, advertising boards at Sixways, advertisement in the 

matchday programme or on the big screens. 

 
The proposer, Councillor Stephen Hodgson and the seconder, Councillor Mrs Lucy 

Hodgson, both spoke in support of the Motion.  
 

The following amendment was proposed by Councillor Denham and seconded by 
Councillor Udall: 

 
7. Council agrees to recognise the contribution of Worcester Warriors 

Foundation to many aspects of health and well-being in our city communities 

and seek ways to co-operate with the Foundation to facilitate the 

sustainability of their projects in Worcester. 

 

A vote on this amendment was carried, following which the Motion, as amended, 
was put to the vote. The Motion was agreed and it was 

 
RESOLVED: That the Council agrees the actions set out in items 1-7 
above. 

 
The Mayor then proposed a short adjournment. The meeting adjourned at 

9.20p.m. and reconvened at 9.30p.m. 
 
5. Climate and Ecology Bill 

 
Worcester City Council resolves to:  

  
1.  Support the Climate and Ecology Bill;  
2. Mandate the Managing Director to write to our local MP Robin Walker 

informing him that the motion has been passed and urging him to sign up 
to support the Bill;  

3. Mandate the Managing Director to write to Zero Hour, the organisers of 
the cross-party campaign for the Bill, expressing the Council’s support for 
the Climate and Ecology Bill.  

 
The proposer, Councillor Lewing and the seconder, Councillor Laurenson, both 

spoke in support of the Motion. Other Members spoke in support of the Motion, 
where a range of views were expressed across the Chamber,  following which the 
Motion was put to the vote. The Motion was agreed and it was 

 
RESOLVED: That the Council agree to instruct the Managing Director to: 

 

Page 13

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://www.google.com/url?q%3Dhttp://www.ceebill.uk%26amp;sa%3DD%26amp;source%3Deditors%26amp;ust%3D1665135223243903%26amp;usg%3DAOvVaw2DOiHkfhVilujJaF44T-kd&sa=D&source=docs&ust=1665135223255229&usg=AOvVaw1fFGfGc3alNN24XzsxdYMX


 17th October 2022 14 

 
 

1. write to Robin Walker, MP informing him that a motion has been 

passed by the Council to support the Climate and Ecology Bill and 
urging him to sign up to support the Bill; and 

2. write to Zero Hour, the organisers of the cross-party campaign for 
the Bill, expressing the Council’s support for the Climate and Ecology 
Bill. 

 
6. Investment Zones 

 
This Council believes a transition to a fairer, greener local economy can be 
achieved with targeted investment in renewable energy, building insulation, 

public transport and nature recovery. We are concerned that Government plans 
for Investment Zones, far from supporting such a transition, could actually set 

them back, whilst undermining local control of planning.  We note the Open 
Letter to the Prime Minister signed by 78 leaders of nature, conservation and 
humanitarian organisations and charities, which states that “ proposals to 

weaken environmental planning rules in “Investment Zones” around the country 
would be… misconceived”.  

 
This Council therefore resolves to call on Worcestershire County Council to:   
• Make plain their commitment to local control of planning.  

• Make plain that they will continue to insist on existing environmental 
protections and nature recovery rules – as a minimum.  

 
Where council leaders insist on submitting ‘Expressions of Interest’ forms, we call 

on them to declare that they will:  
• Not accept a reduction in affordable housing as a percentage of overall 

development in their area.  

• Refuse to provide a simple ‘Yes’ to the question “Do you agree in principle to 
ensure outstanding planning matters impeding early delivery are brought to 

resolution to an accelerated timetable (enabling additional delivery within the 
next two years)? 

• Refuse to provide a simple ‘Yes’ to the request to “confirm whether you will 

agree in principle to using a new streamlined overarching planning system".   
 

Open Letter to the Prime Minister: https://www.wcl.org.uk/open-letter-to-pm-
on-environmental-deregulation.asp 
 

The proposer, Councillor Bisset and the seconder, Councillor Stephen, both spoke 
in support of the Motion. Other Members spoke in support of the Motion, where a 

range of views were expressed across the Chamber,  following which the Motion 
was put to the vote. The Motion was agreed and it was 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council agree to instruct the Managing Director to: 
 

1. write to Worcestershire County Council, calling them to:   
• Make plain their commitment to local control of planning.  
• Make plain that they will continue to insist on existing 

environmental protections and nature recovery rules – as a 
minimum; and  

 
2. where council leaders insist on submitting ‘Expressions of Interest’ 

forms, write to them, calling them to declare that they will:  

Page 14

https://www.wcl.org.uk/open-letter-to-pm-on-environmental-deregulation.asp
https://www.wcl.org.uk/open-letter-to-pm-on-environmental-deregulation.asp


 17th October 2022 15 

 
 

• Not accept a reduction in affordable housing as a percentage of 

overall development in their area.  
• Refuse to provide a simple ‘Yes’ to the question “Do you agree in 

principle to ensure outstanding planning matters impeding early 
delivery are brought to resolution to an accelerated timetable 
(enabling additional delivery within the next two years)? 

• Refuse to provide a simple ‘Yes’ to the request to “confirm whether 
you will agree in principle to using a new streamlined overarching 

planning system".   
 

50 Report from the Relevant Committee on Matters which are Referred to 

Council for Decision  
 

The Council received reports on matters which by law or in accordance with the 
Constitution are referred to Council for decision. 
 

51 Referral Report from Standards Committee - Standards Committee 
Annual Report  

 
The Council considered a referral report from the Chair of Standards Committee 
on the Annual Report of the Committee, which provided a summary of the work 

undertaken by the Committee in the 2021/22 municipal year. 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Allcott and seconded by Councillor Roberts and on 
being put to the vote it was agreed and 

 
RESOLVED: That the Council receives the Standards Committee Annual 
Report 2021/22. 

 
52 Referral Report from Income Generation Sub-Committee - Electrical 

Vehicle Charging Prices  
 
The Council considered a referral report from the Chair of the Income Generation 

Sub-Committee on proposed changes to the tariff for the EV charge points 
installed in St Martin’s Gate car park.  

 
At the meeting on 27th July 2022, the Sub-Committee had considered a report 
which explained that the Council’s electricity costs had increased by 22% since 

the current charge was set in 2021. Officers had reviewed information on the 
pricing of other electric vehicle charging facilities locally, as a result of which it 

was recommended that the charge is set at 39p per kWh incl. VAT for the 22kW 
chargers and 49p incl. VAT per kWh for the 50kW chargers. This was 
recommended as a market rate which will also cover the cost of service 

provision. 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Riaz and seconded by Councillor Mackay and on 
being put to the vote it was agreed and 
 

RESOLVED: That the Council approves the proposed charges set out 
above. 

 
53 Amendments to the Constitution  

 

Page 15



 17th October 2022 16 

 
 

The Council considered a report on proposed amendments to the Constitution. 

The Joint Leader presented the report and explained that the amendments were 
to provide clarity on a number of points where the Constitution does not reflect 

the Council’s preferred operating arrangements. The amendments were: 
 

Issue Proposed amendment 

Name of the Income Generation Sub-
Committee does not fully capture its 

purpose/remit bearing in mind its role 
in the scrutiny of fees and 

management of income and the 
constraints on Council investment 
activity. 

Change name to: Income Management 
Sub-Committee. 

Recognising inflationary pressures and 
the regular fluctuation in fees and 

charges for review, the Members of 
the Income Generation Sub-
Committee propose increasing the 

level of authority that the s151 Officer 
has to approve in-year variations 

themselves, without recourse to a 
Member body. 

In the Council’s financial procedure 
rules, add: 

“the Corporate Director Finance and 
Resources to approve any variation to 
fees and charges which is not estimated 

to result in an increase or decrease in 
income of more or less than £10,000.” 

Delete references to £5,000 accordingly. 

The function of financial hardship and 
welfare of residents is not clearly the 

responsibility of any one Committee. 
Where financial support relates to 

residents’ welfare, it is an area of 
interest to the Health and Wellbeing 
Committee. 

In Part 3, to the functions of Health and 
Wellbeing Committee, add: 

“Financial Hardship and Support relating 
to the Welfare of Residents”  

The function of museums, heritage 
and culture is currently assigned in 

the Constitution to the Communities 
Committee, whereas in practice it is 
an area of interest to the Place and 

Economic Development Committee 

In Part 3, to the functions of the Place 
and Economic Development Committee 

add: 

 “Museums, heritage and culture” 

and delete from the functions of the 

Communities Committee. 

 

It was proposed by Councillor Bayliss and seconded by Councillor Denham and 
upon being put to the vote it was agreed and 

 
RESOLVED: That Council approves, with immediate effect, the 
amendments to the Constitution set out in this report and authorises the 

Corporate Director - Planning and Governance to make the necessary 
drafting changes to the Constitution. 

 
54 Report from the Joint Leader of the Council on any matters which he is 

of the opinion require urgent consideration by The Council  

Page 16



 17th October 2022 17 

 
 

 

The Joint Leader informed Members that this would be his last meeting as Joint 
Leader of the Council. He reflected on his time in the role and noted various 

achievements of the Council during that period. He thanked members of the 
Conservative Group, residents of Bedwardine Ward and Officers of the Council for 
their support. He thanked Members and the Mayor expressed his thanks in return 

on behalf of the Council. 
 

55 Items Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information  
 
None. 

 
56 Any Exempt Issues  

 
None. 
 

 
 

Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 10.20p.m. 
 

 

 
 

Chair at the meeting on 
29th November 2022 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



 
 

Report to: Council, 29th November 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director - Planning and Governance 
 

 
Subject: THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR ENGLAND: 

DRAFT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR NEW ELECTORAL ARRANGEMENTS 
FOR WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL 

 

1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 Council agrees the Response set out in Appendix 1 as its collective response 
to the draft recommendations published by the Local Government Boundary 

Commission for England and authorises the Corporate Director - Planning 
and Governance to submit this document to the Commission, on behalf of 
the Council. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE, The Commission) 

identified Worcester City Council as a local authority that requires a review of its 

electoral arrangements. The last review was completed in 2002. There is an evident 
level of electoral imbalance in two areas of the city which breach the acceptable 

‘levels of equality’ endorsed by the LGBCE. This electoral inequality scenario 
becomes more acute when taking into account the electorate population forecast 
growth up to 2028 (the Commission’s target date). 

 
2.2 The review commenced in late 2021 and as part of the first stage of the review, the 

Council made a submission to the Commission in February 2022, as to the number of 
councillors that Worcester City Council should have. The Council submitted that the 
number of councillors should preferably remain at 35, although it would accept up to 

39 Councillors if required. Simultaneously the Council resolved that it should change 
its electoral cycle from elections by thirds, to whole-Council elections. 

 
2.3 One consequence of this decision to move to whole-council elections is that, for the 

purposes of the Commission’s review, the number of councillors representing each 

ward in the city may be any number from 1 to 4, with 3 councillors typically being 
the highest number representing each ward. 

 
2.4 The Commission has advised that it is minded to recommend that the Council size 

should be 35 councillors and so the review has moved to the second stage; to 

determine revised warding arrangements for the district, based upon 35 councillors. 
2.5 At its July meeting, the Council agreed a draft submission on the warding pattern, 

supported by the leaders of its four Political Groups, (Draft Warding submission 
Worcester City Council July 2022.pdf). The submission was sent to the Commission 
in July 2022. 

 
 

Page 19 Agenda Item 9

http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s54110/Draft%20Warding%20submission%20Worcester%20City%20Council%20July%202022.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s54110/Draft%20Warding%20submission%20Worcester%20City%20Council%20July%202022.pdf


2.6 In early November 2022 the Commission produced proposals in the document “New 
electoral arrangements for Worcester City Council, Draft Recommendations, 

November 2022” (Report - Worcester draft recommendations - cover.pdf). The 
Commission’s consultation on this document closes on 25th January 2023 

 

2.7 Following consultation with Leaders of the Council’s four Political Groups the 
document at Appendix A to this report has been produced to set out the Council’s 

response to these draft recommendations. This response is supported by all four of 
the Political Group Leaders. 

 

2.8 It is understood that Political Groups and individual Councillors may also submit their 
own comments to the Commission. 

3. Preferred Option  
 

3.1 The preferred option is to approve the draft response which is set out in Appendix 
1. This has been prepared following discussions with the 4 Political Group Leaders as 

well as workshops with nominated group Members.  

3.2 It should be noted that individual Members and Political Groups are also at liberty to 
make their own submissions directly to the Commission. 

3.3 Because the Council operates a Committee system of governance and currently has 
no overall political control, officers propose that any Submission which is put before 

full Council should have the support of all 4 Political Group Leaders. This is to try to 
be consistent with the spirit of the Group Leaders protocol in the Constitution and 
avoid the scenario where a document submitted to the Commission which purports 

to be a “Council Submission” has only actually received a qualified endorsement 
through a majority vote at the Council meeting. 

3.4 Overall, through the development of this Submission by officers and Members, there 
has been a good deal of consensus supporting the Commission’s draft 

recommendations. All of the minor realignment of boundaries are supported.  

3.5 More significant changes to realign the boundary between St Stephen and Rainbow 
Hill (which were proposed by the Council in its previous submission) are also 

supported, as are those relating to moving the Cherry Orchard area into Battenhall. 

3.6 Whilst the Commission’s recommendation to split Cathedral Ward differs slightly 

from that proposed by the Council, there is consensus supporting the Commission’s 
alternative proposal. 

3.7 Group Leaders have not reached a consensus on the Commission’s recommendations 

to merge Gorse Hill and Warndon, and to move properties in the vicinity of Avon and 
Teme Road into Nunnery. The draft document at Appendix A makes it clear that the 

Council does not wish to submit a response regarding these specific 
recommendations. 

3.8 Corporate/Policy Implications 

 
None identified at this stage: if the Commission does ultimately recommend changes 

to the Council’s warding patterns then the Council will need to prepare for these 
changes before they are adopted. 

 

 

Page 20

https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Reviews/West%20Midlands/Worcestershire/Worcester/Report%20-%20Worcester%20draft%20recommendations%20-%20cover.pdf


3.9 Equality Implications 
 

No specific implications for equality, diversity and inclusion were identified in the 
preparation of this Submission, except to note that community identities were 
considered at a very localised level by officers and Members when reviewing warding 

arrangements. 
 

3.10 Human Resources Implications 
 

None identified. 

 
3.11 Health and Safety Implications 

 
None identified. 

 
3.12 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 
 

The overall objective of the review of warding arrangements is to ensure electoral 
equality, which is intended to have a positive impact on individuals’ satisfaction with 

local government representation. 

 

 
 
 

Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, Corporate Director - Planning and 

Governance, 01905 722019 sian.stroud@worcester.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers: Warding Submission, Worcester City Council  
Draft Warding submission Worcester City Council July 2022.pdf 
New electoral arrangements for Worcester City Council, 

Draft Recommendations, November 2022, LGBCE,  
Report - Worcester draft recommendations - cover.pdf 

 

Appendix 1: Draft Council Submission 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21

mailto:sian.stroud@worcester.gov.uk
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s54110/Draft%20Warding%20submission%20Worcester%20City%20Council%20July%202022.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Reviews/West%20Midlands/Worcestershire/Worcester/Report%20-%20Worcester%20draft%20recommendations%20-%20cover.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Worcester City Council 

 

 

Response to LGBCE  

Draft Recommendations for New Electoral Arrangements for Worcester 

City Council  

 

 

November 2022 

 

  

Page 23 Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Contents: 

1. Background 

 

2. Methodology 

 

3. Overall Approach 

 

4. The Council’s response 

4.1. North-west 

4.2. North-east and East 

4.3. Central and West 

4.4. South 

 

5. Summary of the Council’s Response 

  

Page 24



 

 

 

1. Background 

The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE, The 

Commission) identified Worcester City Council as a local authority that requires a 

review of its electoral arrangements. The last review was completed in 2002. 

There is an evident level of electoral imbalance in two areas of the city which 

breach the acceptable ‘levels of equality’ endorsed by the LGBCE. This electoral 

inequality scenario becomes more acute when taking into account the electorate 

population forecast growth up to 2028 (the Commission’s target date). 

The review commenced in late 2021 and as part of the first stage of the review, 

the Council made a submission to the Commission in February 2022, as to the 

number of councillors that Worcester City Council should have. The Council 

submitted that the number of councillors should preferably remain at 35, 

although it would accept up to 39 Councillors if required. Simultaneously the 

Council resolved that it should change its electoral cycle from elections by thirds, 

to whole-Council elections.  

One consequence of this decision to move to whole-council elections is that, for 

the purposes of the Commission’s review, the number of councillors representing 

each ward in the city may be any number from 1 to 4, with 3 councillors 

typically being the highest number representing each ward. 

The Commission has advised that it is minded to recommend that the Council 

size should be 35 councillors and so the review has moved to the second stage; 

to determine revised warding arrangements for the district, based upon 35 

councillors. 

At its July meeting, the Council agreed a draft submission on the warding 

pattern, supported by the leaders of its four Political Groups, (Draft Warding 

submission Worcester City Council July 2022.pdf) and resolved: 

“That the Council agrees the Warding Arrangements Submission set out in 

Appendix 1, Paragraph 4 - Summary of the Council’s Proposals as its collective 

response to the initial consultation being undertaken by the Local Government 

Boundary Commission for England and authorises the Corporate Director - 

Planning and Governance to submit this document to the Commission, on behalf 

of the Council.” 

The submission was sent to the Commission in July 2022. 

In early November 2022 the Commission produced proposals in the document 

“New electoral arrangements for Worcester City Council, Draft 

Recommendations, November 2022” (Report - Worcester draft recommendations - 

cover.pdf). 

Following consultation with Leaders of the Council’s four Political Groups this 

document has been produced to set out the Council’s response to these draft 

Page 25

http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s54110/Draft%20Warding%20submission%20Worcester%20City%20Council%20July%202022.pdf
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/documents/s54110/Draft%20Warding%20submission%20Worcester%20City%20Council%20July%202022.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Reviews/West%20Midlands/Worcestershire/Worcester/Report%20-%20Worcester%20draft%20recommendations%20-%20cover.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Reviews/West%20Midlands/Worcestershire/Worcester/Report%20-%20Worcester%20draft%20recommendations%20-%20cover.pdf


 

recommendations, giving due consideration to the three main criteria set by the 

Commission in determining warding arrangements:  

1. Delivering electoral equality for local voters  

2. Reflecting the interests and identities of local communities  

3. Promoting effective and convenient local government 

The Council considers that this response meets the criteria as set by the 

Commission.  

The attached response is supported by all four of the Political Group Leaders. 

It is understood that Political Groups and individual Councillors may also submit 

their own comments to the Commission. 

 

2. Methodology 

Officers presented the Commission’s proposals at a meeting of the Political 

Group Leaders, and followed this with further discussion with Group Leaders 

individually and their nominated Group Members. 

Officers worked to the objective of achieving a consensus response as far as 

possible, whilst noting where Groups held differing views and a consensus could 

not be achieved. 

3. Overall Approach 

The Council operates a Committee System and there is currently no overall 

political control. The four Political Group Leaders agreed that only a response 

that they all supported would be recommended to full Council and voted on.  

Individual Political Groups may choose to make their own responses to 

supplement the Council’s response and explain their individual perspectives. 

 

4. The Council’s response 

The Council’s original position was that  

“there is a consensus that the majority of wards work well, providing electoral 

equality (electors per Councillor), upholding the interests and identities of 

communities, and supporting effective and convenient local government. 

Changes are therefore only proposed where there is significant electoral 

inequality – namely in Cathedral (too large for three Councillors) and the 

Warndon Parish wards (need to be rebalanced between North and South). 

Whilst this requires an additional Councillor to facilitate the proposals for 

Cathedral Ward the Council has not reached a consensus on how to generate 

this additional Councillor, although a number of options have been discussed”. 

Page 26



 

These options to facilitate the proposals for Cathedral Ward were included with 

the Council’s submission but did not form part of the submission as the Political 

Groups were unable to reach a consensus on any of these options. 

This response to the Commission’s proposals is presented as a comment on each 

of the draft changes recommended, which affect the boundaries of 12 of the 15 

wards. 

This response is grouped into North-west, North-east and East, Central and 

West, and South as in the Commission’s Draft Recommendations. The maps 

from the LGBCE document are produced below. An interactive map is available 

at Local Government Boundary Commission for England Consultation Portal (lgbce.org.uk). 

Where responses affect more than one of the four areas they are repeated under 

each relevant area to assist in association with individual wards. 

 

4.1 North-west (p9 of LGBCE Draft Recommendation) 

 

 
 

4.1.1 The Council supports the draft recommendation to move the St. 

Stephen and Rainbow Hill boundary to include within Rainbow Hill 

properties to the North of Green Lane and properties on and 

accessed via Tintern Avenue. This was proposed in the Council’s 

submission in July 2022. 

 

4.1.2 The Council supports the draft recommendation to realign the 

Claines and St Stephen boundary along the canal adjacent to 

Drovers Way and Suffolk Drive. 

Page 27

https://consultation.lgbce.org.uk/node/34631


 

 

4.1.3 The Council supports the draft recommendation to realign the 

Claines and Arboretum boundary along the centre line of the 

Barbourne Brook through Gheulvelt Park. 

 

 

4.2 North-east and East (p11 of LGBCE Draft Recommendation) 

 

 
 

4.2.1 The Council supports the draft recommendation to move the St. 

Stephen and Rainbow Hill boundary to include within Rainbow Hill 

properties to the North of Green Lane and properties on and 

accessed via Tintern Avenue. This was proposed in the Council’s 

submission in July 2022. 

 

4.2.2 The Council has not reached a consensus regarding the draft 

recommendation to merge Warndon and Gorse Hill and therefore 

this response is silent on this draft recommendation. 

 

4.2.3 The Council has not reached a consensus response to the draft 

recommendation to extend the Nunnery boundary to the North to 

align with Tolladine Road, moving into Nunnery properties in the 

Page 28



 

Avon Road, Teme Road, Cherwell Close, Conway and Avon Close. 

Therefore this response is silent on this draft recommendation. 

 

4.2.4 The Council supports the draft recommendation of ward name 

changes to Warndon Villages North and Warndon Villages South. 

 

4.2.5 The Council supports the draft recommendation of the boundary 

between Warndon Villages North and Warndon Villages South. 

 

4.2.6 The Council supports the draft recommendation of the boundary 

between Warndon Villages South and Nunnery that leaves the 

entire Worcestershire Royal Hospital site in Warndon Villages South. 

 

4.2.7 The Council supports the draft recommendation to move properties 

in Lilburne Close, Cranbourne Grove and the North side of 

Perrywood Walk from Nunnery into Fort Royal. 

 

4.3 Central and West (p18 of LGBCE Draft Recommendation) 

 

 
 

4.3.1 The Council supports the draft recommendations to realign the 

boundary between St John and Bedwardine at the following 

locations  

 Junction of Watery Lane / Bransford Road, 

 Junction of Bromyard Road and Watery Lane to the rear of 

Happy Land West 

 Junction of Tudor Way and Bromyard Road 

Page 29



 

 Earl’s Court Cottage, Bromyard Road 

 

4.3.2 The Council supports the draft recommendation to realign the 

Claines and Arboretum boundary along the centre line of the 

Barbourne Brook through Gheulvelt Park. 

 

4.3.3 The Council supports the draft recommendation for the division of 

of Cathedral into City Centre and Fort Royal along the boundaries 

recommended. This is broadly aligned to the proposals within the 

Council’s submission in July 2022, subject to some minor 

amendments to the proposed ward boundaries. 

 

4.3.4 The Council supports the draft recommendation to move properties 

in Lilburne Close, Cranbourne Grove and the North side of 

Perrywood Walk from Nunnery into Fort Royal. 

 

4.3.5 The Council supports the draft recommendation to move the 

boundary between Battenhall and City Centre (formerly Cathedral), 

which moves properties in Waverley Street, Cavendish Street, 

Orchard Street, Berwick Street, Cavalier Crescent and the East side 

of Bath Road into Battenhall. 

  

4.3.6 The Council supports the draft recommendation to move properties 

in Pitchcroft Lane from City Centre (formerly Cathedral) into 

Arboretum. 

 

4.4 South (p22 of Draft LGBCE Recommendation) 

 

 
 

Page 30



 

4.4.1 The Council supports the draft recommendation to realign the 

boundary between St John and Bedwardine at the following 

locations  

 Junction of Watery Lane / Bransford Road, 

 Junction of Bromyard Road and Watery Lane to the rear of 

Happy Land West 

 Junction of Tudor Way and Bromyard Road 

 Earl’s Court Cottage, Bromyard Road 

 

4.4.2 The Council supports the draft recommendation to move the 

boundary between Battenhall and City Centre (formerly Cathedral), 

which moves properties in Waverley Street, Cavendish Street, 

Orchard Street, Berwick Street, Cavalier Crescent and the East side 

of Bath Road into Battenhall. 

 

5. Summary of the Council’s Response 

 

5.1 The Council’s response supports the LGBCE Draft Recommendations 

with the exception of the proposed move of an area around Avon and 

Teme Roads into Nunnery and the amalgamation of Warndon and 

Gorse Hill. The Council makes no response on these two issues. 

 

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	9 Council Response to the Local Government Boundary Commission for England: Draft Recommendations for New Electoral Arrangements for Worcester City Council
	Appendix 1 - Draft Recommendations for New Electoral Arrangements  - Draft Submission of Worcester City Council November 2022


